
 

    Item No. 10.1.5                  
 Halifax Regional Council 

 March 29, 2011 

  

 

TO:   Mayor Kelly and Members of Halifax Regional Council 

 

       

SUBMITTED BY: _____________________________________________ 

   Mike Labrecque, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer 

 

DATE:  March 24, 2011 

 

SUBJECT:  Impact of Provincial Policy Change on Mandatory Payments 

 

 

ORIGIN 

 

On March 22, 2011 Regional Council passed a motion to request a staff report clarifying the 

impact to HRM in regard to the proposed provincial amendments to the funding arrangement 

reached in 2007 as outlined in the “Technical Briefing, MOU” document prepared for Mr. Kevin 

Malloy, Deputy Minister Service Nova Scotia and Municipal Relations. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the Mayor write the Minister of Service Nova Scotia expressing Councils 

disappointment at the recent changes in mandatory payments and suggesting that Municipal and 

Provincial staff meet to discuss possible alternatives to the Provincial announcement.
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BACKGROUND 

 

HRM makes mandatory payments for four province-wide services: education, housing, 

corrections and property assessments (done by the Property Valuation Services Corporation).  

The education payment makes up more than 80% of the total. 

 

In November 2007, the Province of Nova Scotia and the Union of Nova Scotia Municipalities 

(UNSM) signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that agreed to a cap on municipal 

mandatory education payments (at CPI) and the elimination of municipal mandatory housing and 

corrections payments (over seven years).  See page 3 of the MOU (Attachment 1). 

 

In 2010-11, the phase out of both housing and corrections payments began in HRM, with plans 

for housing payments to be eliminated by April 1, 2012 and corrections payments to be 

eliminated by April 1, 2014. 

 

On March 22, 2011, the Province of Nova Scotia announced that it would change its approach to 

calculating the required municipal education, housing and corrections payments, effective the 

2012-13 fiscal year. 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The proposed policy changes are described in the March 22, 2011 notes for Deputy Minister, 

Service Nova Scotia and Municipal Relations, Kevin Malloy (Attachment 2).  A “before & after” 

summary of the changes is provided in the table below. 

 

Mandatory Education Payments 

 Under MOU New Policy 

Constrained by NS CPI increase As of 2012-13, 

2010-11 education rate will be applied to new 

Uniform Assessments (trending 3% above CPI) 
 

Housing Payments 

 Under MOU New Policy 

To be reduced to $0 by 2012-13 Back to pre-MOU level by 2011-12. 
 

Corrections Payments 

 Under MOU New Policy 

To be reduced to $0 by 2014-15 As of 2012-13, frozen at 80% of pre-MOU level, 

with no CPI increases. 
 

PVSC Payments 

 Under MOU New Policy 

Not included. No change. 

 

 

The proposed provincial policy will not have any effect on mandatory education or corrections 

payments in 2011-12, but will increase those amounts significantly in 2012-13.  The required 

housing payment will change immediately for HRM, increasing to pre-MOU levels. 
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A five-year look at the HRM’s mandatory payments, including forecasts for fiscal years 2011-12 

through 2014-15, is shown below.  The annual impact of the new policy is summarized in the 

“Difference” line, at the bottom of the table. 

 

Estimated Mandatory Contributions, 2010-15 (Original MOU), millions 

      

 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 

      Education $97.0 $99.8 $102.5 $105.4 $108.3 

Corrections 6.4 4.8 3.2 1.6 0.0 

Housing 1.2 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 

PVSC 6.6 6.8 7.0 7.2 7.4 

            

Total $111.2 $112.6 $112.7 $114.2 $115.7 

 

 

 

 

 

     Estimated Mandatory Contributions, 2010-15 (New Policy), millions 

      

 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 

      Education $97.0 $99.8 $106.5 $112.6 $119.0 

Corrections 6.4 4.8 6.4 6.4 6.4 

Housing 1.2 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 

PVSC 6.6 6.8 7.0 7.2 7.4 

            

Total $111.2 $113.8 $122.3 $128.6 $135.2 

      Difference (millions) $1.2 $9.6 $14.4 $19.5 

 

 

The new provincial policy is in effect up to and including fiscal year 2014-15. 

 

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 

 

There are no operating budget implications to this report.  However, the provincial policy change 

will increase future mandatory area rates, including an increase in the mandatory housing rate for 

2011-12.  The mandatory rates provided during the up-coming 2011-12 budget debate will 

reflect the new provincial policy.  In fiscal years 2012-13 through 2014-15, the mandatory rates 

are expected to return close to those in 2010-11. 
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES/BUSINESS PLAN 

 

This report complies with the Municipality’s Multi-Year Financial Strategy, the approved 

Operating, Project and Reserve budgets, policies and procedures regarding withdrawals from the 

utilization of Project and Operating reserves, as well as any relevant legislation. 

 

 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

 

No community engagement required by HRM. 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES 
 

There are no recommended alternatives. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

Attachment 1: MOU between the Province and UNSM, November 2007 

 

Attachment 2: “Technical Briefing, MOU”, Deputy Minister Kevin Malloy, March 2011 

 

 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

A copy of this report can be obtained online at http://www.halifax.ca/council/agendasc/cagenda.html then choose the appropriate 

meeting date, or by contacting the Office of the Municipal Clerk at 490-4210, or Fax 490-4208. 

 

Report Prepared by: Andre MacNeil, Financial Consultant, 490-6241 

    

 

Report Approved by: _________________________________________________ 

   Bruce Fisher, Manager, Fiscal & Tax Policy, 490-4493 

 

    

 

 

Report Approved by: _________________________________________________ 

   Cathie O’Toole, Director of Finance,  490-6308 

 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
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